
      
PLEASE VIEW THE LIVE STREAMED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS ON THE CITY'S WEB SITE:PLEASE VIEW THE LIVE STREAMED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS ON THE CITY'S WEB SITE:

City-Council-Live-StreamCity-Council-Live-Stream

CORTEZ CITY COUNCILCORTEZ CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETINGREGULAR MEETING

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 22, 2022TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 22, 2022
7:30 P.M.7:30 P.M.

      

1. CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE,  ROLL CALL,  APPROVAL OF AGENDA.   

 

2. CONSENT AGENDA

The listing under "Consent Agenda" is a group of items to be acted on with a single motion and vote.
This agenda is designed to expedite the handling of limited routine matters by City Council. Either the
public or a Councilmember may request that an item may be removed from the Consent Agenda at that
time, prior to Council's vote. The Mayor will ask if a citizen or Councilmember wishes to have any
specific item removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion.

  

 

a. Approval of the Council Agenda Minutes for November 8, 2022. 
 

b. Approval of the Expenditure List for November 22, 2022
 

c. Approval of a renewal Fermented Malt Beverage Liquor License and Change of Manager application for
Walmart Store No. 0966, located at 1835 East Main Street, Cortez.

 

3. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
There is no limit to the number of speakers, although public comments will be held to anThere is no limit to the number of speakers, although public comments will be held to an
overall time limit of 30 minutes.overall time limit of 30 minutes.
(Speakers have a time limit of three (3) minutes per person, may only speak once, and may not cede time to(Speakers have a time limit of three (3) minutes per person, may only speak once, and may not cede time to
another commenter.  P lease reference rules below .)another commenter.  P lease reference rules below .)

  

 

4. PRESENTATIONS   

 

a. An update will be given by Municipal Judge Beth Padilla.   

 

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS   

 

a. The Champion Xpress Car Wash has Requested to Withdraw their Application for a Conditional Use
Permit.
Presenter: Presenter: Rachael Marchbanks, Community and Economic Development Director

 

b. Ordinance No. 1303, Series 2022
 

 Ordinance No. 1303, Series 2022, Amending the City of Cortez Land Use Code, Section 3.05 - Use
Regulations Regarding Dwelling, Accessory Unit - ADU.

 

Presenter: Presenter: Nancy Dosdall, Contract City Planner
 

6. UNFINISHED BUSINESS   

 

http://www.cityofcortez.com/497 /City-Council-Live-Stream


      
7. NEW BUSINESS   

 

a. Bid Results and Lease of Four Refuse Trucks
Presenter: Presenter: Brian Peckins, Director of Public Works Department

 

b. Possible Cancelation of Council Meeting Scheduled for Tuesday, December 27, 2022
 

 Council will consider approving the cancelation of the Council meeting scheduled for Tuesday,
December 27, 2022, due to the holidays.

 

Presenter: Presenter: Linda Smith, City Clerk
 

8. DRAFT RESOLUTION/ORDINANCES   

 

9. CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT   

 

10. CITY MANAGER'S REPORT   

 

11. CITY COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS   

 

a. Mayor's Report on Workshop   

 

b. Other Board Reports   

 

12. OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS   

 

a. Executive Session as needed.   

 

13. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
There is no limit to the number of speakers and no overall time limit.There is no limit to the number of speakers and no overall time limit.
(Speakers have a time limit of three (3) minutes per person, may only speak once, and may not cede time to(Speakers have a time limit of three (3) minutes per person, may only speak once, and may not cede time to
another commenter.  P lease reference rules below .)another commenter.  P lease reference rules below .)

  

 

14. ADJOURNMENT   

 



      
 
PURSUANT TO RESOLUTION 11, SERIES 2022, PUBLIC COMMENT:
--Individuals may comment regarding items on the Council agenda or any other topic they wish to address the
City Council about, including items discussed in a previous Council Workshop.    Those wishing to comment
must register by completing an "Intent to Speak" card (located outside of the Council chambers).  Completed
cards will be collected at the start of the meeting and delivered to the Mayor, who will call each speaker to the
podium at the appropriate time.  Comments specific to agenda items scheduled for public hearings should be
reserved and delivered during the public hearing session.
--Courtesy, civility, and respect for others is expected.  All comments should be addressed directly to the
Council. Commenters who are called upon by the Mayor to speak are the only persons allowed to speak during
the allotted time.  Comments, or other distractions from the audience intended for commenters or others are not
permitted.  The Mayor, as the chairperson for the meeting, retains the discretion to deviate from the formats
described below.
--There are two general opportunities for citizens to address the Council:
For the first opportunity (which will occur toward the start of the meeting) there is no limit to the number of
speakers, although public comments will be held to an overall time limit of 30 minutes so City business may
proceed.  Speakers have a time limit of 3 minutes per person, may only speak once, and may not cede time to
other commenters.
For the second opportunity (which will occur toward the end of the meeting) there is no limit to the number of
speakers, and no overall time limit.  Speakers have a time limit of 3 minutes per person, may only speak once,
and may not cede time to other commenters.
--Other Opportunities to Participate
Citizens may also participate via email if addressed to councilcomments@cortezco.gov. Comments received by
3:00pm the day of a Council meeting will be delivered to Council the same day and entered into the meeting
minutes.  Citizens may also send letters to the Council by addressing them to "City Council" 123 Roger Smith
Ave., Cortez, CO 81321.  In-person deliveries are also accepted.

MOTION TO GO INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION:
--For a conference with the City attorney for the purpose of receiving legal advice on specific legal questions
under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(b);
--For the purpose of determining positions relative to matters that may be subject to negotiations, developing
strategy for negotiations, and/or instructing negotiators under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(e);
--To discuss the purchase, acquisition, lease, transfer, or sale of real, personal, or other property interest under
C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(a)
--For discussion of a personnel matter under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(f) and not involving: any specific fie
employees who have requested discussion of the matter in open session: any member of this body or any elected
official: the appointment of any person to fill an office of this body or of an elected official: or personnel policies
that do not require the discussion of matters personal to particular employees
--For discussion of a matter required to be kept confidential by the following federal or state law, or regulation:
____ under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(c)
--For discussion of specialized details of security arrangements or investigations under C.R.S. Section 24-6-
402(4)(d)
--For consideration of documents protected by the mandatory nondisclosure provisions of the Open Records Act
under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(g)

AND THE FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL DETAILS ARE PROVIDED:
(a brief description must be included following the statute citation regarding why the executive session is being
held) 
 

 

mailto:councilcomments@cortezco.gov


CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
November 22, 2022 Agenda Item: 2. a.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Honorable Mayor and City Council
 

FROM:
 

Donna Murphy, Deputy City Clerk

SUBJECT:
 

Approval of the Council Agenda Minutes for November 8, 2022. 
 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Agenda Minutes November 8, 2022



 

 

      CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 8, 2022 

 

 

1. The meeting was called to order in the City Council Chambers at 7:30 p.m., with the Pledge of 

Allegiance.  Roll Call was taken and the following Councilmembers were present: Mayor Rachel 

Medina, Mayor Pro-tem Arlina Yazzie, Robert Dobry, Matthew Keefauver, David Rainey, and 

Dennis Spruell. Councilmember Lydia DeHaven was absent. Staff present included Director of 

Finance Kelly Koskie, Police Chief Vern Knuckles, Parks and Recreation Director Creighton 

Wright, IT Technician Kyle Kuhn, Deputy City Clerk Donna Murphy, City Manager Drew Sanders, 

and City Attorney Patrick Coleman.  There was one person present in the audience. 

 

Councilmember Keefauver moved that the agenda be approved as presented. Councilmember 

Rainey seconded the motion and the vote was as follows: 

 

         DeHaven         Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

           Absent              Yes                  Yes                 Yes                Yes              Yes              Yes 

 

2.    The Consent Agenda items acted upon by Council were as follows: 

 

a. Approval of the Minutes of the Worksession and Regular Council Meeting held on October 25, 

2022. 

 

b.  Approval of the Expenditure List for November 8, 2022. 

 

c. Approval of a renewal Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License for New Hong Kong of Cortez, Inc., 

DBA New Hong Kong Chinese Restaurant, located at 332 West Main Street, Cortez. 

 

Councilmember Rainey moved that the Consent Agenda be approved as presented.  Councilmember 

Dobry seconded the motion, and the vote was as follows: 

 

         DeHaven         Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

           Absent              Yes                  Yes                 Yes                Yes              Yes              Yes 

 

3.    CITIZEN PARTICIPATION - None 

 

4.    PRESENTATIONS  

 

a. September 2022 Financial Statements.  Director of Finance Kelly Koskie spoke about the September 

2022 Financial Statements.  Director Koskie stated that Right of Way Construction revenue continues to 

be well above projected. She stated the General Fund total revenue is over projections by 2.7%.  She 

stated that after having conversations with other Finance Directors in the area and across the State that 

this seems to be the trend and that 3-5% over projection is not uncommon.  She stated that under the 

General Fund Streets & Utilities and Traffic services appear to be close to 100% of the budget. This is 

due to one-time expenses for additional paint and street repair supplies.  This can be seen on the work 



CITY COUNCIL                    REGULAR MEETING                NOVEMBER 8, 2022               PAGE 2 

   

 

 

completed on Main Street, in front of the Library, and Mildred Road.  She gave kudos to Public Works 

for all they have accomplished in making it look a lot nicer.  Councilmember Dobry questioned whether 

or not the Public Works budget will be exceeded given that we have three months left in the year.  

Finance Director Koskie stated that Streets & Utilities was the highest at 92.7% but said that there are no 

salaries or wages that come out of that department and it should hold steady through the end of the year.  

Mayor Medina asked about the revenue from construction in our right of ways and asked if it was due to 

a permitting process and questioned why it was so high.  Director Koskie stated when she reviewed the 

details it had to do with Spark’s Plumbing and additional plumbing of right of ways that wasn’t 

projected for the year.  Councilmember Dobry asked for an update on the audits.  Director Koskie stated 

that an email from the Audit firm was received with the draft audit for 2019 with some minor changes 

and review by their internal control managing partners.  She stated there shouldn’t be any issues and we 

should receive the final approved version by early next week.  Council stated their gratitude for the work 

the Finance department has completed with doing multiple audits in one year.  

                                                                                                                                 

5.    PUBLIC HEARINGS  

 

a. Ordinance No. 1313, Series 2022.  Director of Finance Kelly Koskie presented Ordinance No. 

1313, Series 2022, on second and final reading for approval of the 2023 Budget and stated that the 

city received no additional comments from the public on ClearGov from the first reading of the 

ordinance.  Councilmember Dobry reminded the public that the line item for City Council was for 

debt repayment.  Mayor Medina then thanked Councilmember Keefauver for bringing up the debt 

repayment and making sure that it is a Council priority. Public Comment was opened, none was 

given and public comment was closed. 

 

Councilmember Dobry moved that Council approve on second and final reading Ordinance No. 

1313, Series 2022, approving an ordinance approving the 2023 Budget.  Councilmember Spruell 

seconded the motion, and the vote was as follows: 

 

            DeHaven         Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

               Absent            Yes                  Yes                 Yes                Yes              Yes              Yes 

 

6.    UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None. 

 

7.     NEW BUSINESS 

  

 a. Resolution 31, Series 2022, Supporting a Grant Application to the State Historical Society.  

Finance Director Kelly Koskie stated the Cortez Historical Preservation Board has asked that the 

City of Cortez support a new certified local government grant in the amount of $20,000.00 that will 

be used to survey 19 high priority commercial and residential sites within the City of Cortez.  All 

these sites have a unique architectural type or style and have not been previously studied. This is a 

continuation of the work they started several years ago. She stated there is no matching funds 

required for the project and if approved the survey work would commence in June 2023.  She stated  

the Grant Administrator will submit the application and do the reporting and tracking of the grant.  

Council discussion included whether this was a pass-through grant and if this was a grant that has 

been applied for in the past.   

 



CITY COUNCIL                    REGULAR MEETING                NOVEMBER 8, 2022               PAGE 3 

   

 

 

Mayor Pro-tem Yazzie moved that Council approve Resolution 31, Series 2022, supporting a grant 

application to History Colorado for a historic property survey of 19 high priority commercial and 

residential properties within the city of Cortez. Councilmember Rainey seconded the motion, and 

the vote was as follows: 

 

            DeHaven        Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

             Absent              Yes                  Yes                 Yes                Yes              Yes               Yes 

 

  8.    DRAFT RESOLUTION/ORDINANCES – None. 

 

  9.    CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT – No Report 

 

 10.   CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

 

a.  Veteran’s Day/ Annual Budget.  City Manager Sanders stated that the Veterans of Foreign Wars - 

Montezuma County VFW Post 5231 has invited the Cortez City Council to the Veteran’s Concrete 

Plaza Dedication on Veteran’s Day, Friday, November 11, 2022 in Veteran’s Park. He stated that he 

is planning on attending the Veteran’s Day parade on Montezuma Avenue that starts at 1:00 p.m. 

later that day.  City Manager Sanders stated that with the passage of the annual budget, City staff is 

working hard to ensure that the remainder of the City business supporting the day to day operations 

are prepared and set in motion for Council action during the remaining two Council meetings of this 

year.  He stated that much of this has been in the works for months and that we are on track to 

position the City for a smooth transition to the next fiscal year.  He stated that collectively the city 

has a lot of work ahead in the first half of next year to position the city for future successes.  He 

stated that he hopes most of this work will get done during the coldest months.  He stated that he 

would like to give an employee spotlight on Don Cornett but given there was no one in the audience 

he would like to move it to the next meeting so this employee can get the recognition he is due. 

 

11.   CITY COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS   

 

a.   Mayor’s Report on Workshop.  Mayor Medina stated the Worksession for November 8, 2022 

was cancelled.  

  

b.  Public Arts Committee.  Councilmember Rainey stated that the committee had met last week 

and discussed a plan to engage downtown businesses with several ideas around building 

awareness.  

 

c. Golf Advisory Committee.  Councilmember Spruell stated the golf course will close on 

November 20th and that tarps have been received from a grant that was submitted by the men’s 

association.  The tarps will cover the greens in the winter and help with snow mold.  It was also 

noted that Cross Country skiing will still be allowed but must stay off the greens.  

 

d. Historic Preservation Board.   Councilmember Dobry stated he was unable to attend the last 

meeting; however, discussion and a vote was taken for the grant being submitted to the State 

Historical Society.  He mentioned the board voted to cancel the December meeting and will not 

meet until January 2023. 



CITY COUNCIL                    REGULAR MEETING                NOVEMBER 8, 2022               PAGE 4 

   

 

 

 

12.   OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS  

 

a. Councilmember Dobry moved to adjourn at 7:57 p.m. into Executive Session for discussion of 

a personnel matter under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(f)(I) and not involving: any specific 

employees who requested discussion of the matter in open session; any member of this body or 

any elected official; the appointment of any person to fill an office of this body or of an elected 

official; or personnel policies that do not require the discussion of matters personal to particular 

employees.  Discussion will be held on an employee matter. Mayor Pro-tem Yazzie seconded the 

motion, and the vote was as follows: 

 

             DeHaven        Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

             Absent              Yes                  Yes                 Yes                Yes              Yes               Yes 

 

Council returned from Executive Session at 8:04 p.m.  Participants in the Executive Session 

included City Manager Sanders, City Attorney Coleman, Mayor Medina, Councilmember Dobry, 

Councilmember Keefauver, Councilmember Rainey, and Councilmember Spruell.  No adoption 

of any policy, position, resolution, rule, regulations, or other formal action occurred during 

Executive Session. 

 

13.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION- None 

 

14.  ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Pro-tem Yazzie moved that the regular meeting be adjourned at 

 8:08 p.m.  Councilmember Dobry seconded the motion, and the vote was as follows: 

 

    DeHaven        Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

         Absent              Yes                  Yes                 Yes                Yes              Yes               Yes 

 

 

 

 

  ________________________________  

                                               Rachel B. Medina, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

          Donna Murphy, Deputy City Clerk         



CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
November 22, 2022 Agenda Item: 2. b.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Honorable Mayor and City Council
 

FROM:
 

Sara Coffey, Finance Assistant/Deputy City Clerk

SUBJECT:
 

Approval of the Expenditure List for November 22, 2022
 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Expenditure List



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING NOVEMBER 11, 2022

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

Human Resources AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES OFFICE SUPPLIES 44.00$          
Total 44.00$          

City Manager CIRSA COVERAGE FOR CHRISTMAS PARADE 769.95$        
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES OFFICE SUPPLIES 9.48$            

Total 779.43$        

Finance FIFTH ASSET, INC SUBSCRIPTION 5,875.00$    
POSTAL PROS, INC. INVOICES 518.21$        

Total 6,393.21$    

Events JIM DODSON CITY DIRECTORY 200.00$        
TIGER BY THE TAIL NAME BADGE 14.16$          

Total 214.16$        

Library CITY OF CORTEZ FIBER 3,503.40$    
NCSI APPLICANT PROFILES 74.00$          

Total 3,577.40$    

City Hall Operations PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL FINANCIAL SERBlanket PO- SendPro C Series Version 4 Mailing S   317.04$        
CITY OF CORTEZ FIBER 599.64$        
ATMOS ENERGY GAS SERVICE 1,082.82$    

Total 1,999.50$    

Wecome Center MESA VERDE COUNTRY V.I.B. Contracted Services for CO Welcome Center 202 2,501.00$    
CITY OF CORTEZ FIBER 806.76$        
ATMOS ENERGY GAS SERVICE 132.88$        
GRAINGER 38W367 Eveready EN93 Alkaline batteries, Size C  14.70$          

Total 3,455.34$    

Police Department AT&T MOBILITY PHONES 131.82$        
AXIS HEALTH SYSTEM JAIL CONTRACT 350.00$        
CITY OF CORTEZ FIBER 1,136.52$    
ATMOS ENERGY GAS SERVICE 121.05$        
GRAINGER 38W367 Eveready EN93 Alkaline batteries, Size C  14.70$          
GRAINGER 31DK84 Trash can liners, 38x58, black - PD 73.29$          
IMAGENET CONSULTING LLC EQUIPMENT RENTAL 21.28$          
COMFORT AIR MECHANICAL Replace remote batteries, thermistors on ductles  491.34$        

Total 2,340.00$    

Animal Shelter DOLORES ANIMAL HOSPITAL CASTRATION 60.00$          
DOLORES ANIMAL HOSPITAL SPAY 84.00$          
DOLORES ANIMAL HOSPITAL SPAY 112.00$        
DOLORES ANIMAL HOSPITAL SPAYS 228.00$        
FOUR CORNERS M.A.S.H., LLC SPAY 96.00$          



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING NOVEMBER 11, 2022

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

VIBRANT PET ANIMAL HOSPITAL CASTRATION 86.25$          
CITY OF CORTEZ FIBER 650.20$        

Total 1,316.45$    

Public Works NCSI APPLICANT PROFILES 67.00$          
NCSI APPLICANT PROFILES 37.00$          
BRANSON ROAD WORKS 2022 Street Striping Project per Submitted Bid 2,039.00$    

Total 2,143.00$    

Parks & Recreation NCSI APPLICANT PROFILES 37.00$          
Total 37.00$          

Outdoor Pool CITY OF CORTEZ FIBER 323.80$        
Total 323.80$        

Golf Course Maint CITY OF CORTEZ FIBER 563.80$        
Total 563.80$        

Parks BRAVO CLEANING & RESTORATION Blanket PO - Litter/Refuse Removal for Parks 3,904.00$    
SPRINKLER PROS Blanket PO - Lawn Maintenance for 3rd/4th Pock         425.00$        
SPRINKLER PROS Blanket PO - Lawn Maintenance for Rodeo and B   490.00$        
CITY OF CORTEZ FIBER 386.68$        
ATMOS ENERGY GAS SERVICE 97.29$          
AUTOZONE FOG BULB 13.88$          
FERGUSON WATERWORKS #1116 ROTORS 2,358.10$    
PARTNERS IN PARTS, INC. ANCHOR SHACKLE 36.99$          
SLAVENS TRUE VALUE COVER 6.63$            
SLAVENS TRUE VALUE TOOL BOX 7.43$            
SLAVENS TRUE VALUE ROPE 14.54$          
SLAVENS TRUE VALUE PLIERS 14.55$          
SUPERIOR AUTO ANTIFREEZE 23.16$          
THE PLUMBING STORE COUPLING 6.42$            
ALL AMERICAN SPORTS MATERIAL Natracil stabilized red infield mix for ball field rep 4,003.30$    
CHOICE BUILDING SUPPLY SCREWS 17.18$          
CHOICE BUILDING SUPPLY TARP 109.99$        
SLAVENS TRUE VALUE PAINT RETURN (59.89)$         
SLAVENS TRUE VALUE HANGER STRAP 5.45$            
SLAVENS TRUE VALUE SCREWS, HANGER STRAP 40.88$          
SLAVENS TRUE VALUE TARPS 151.94$        
SLAVENS TRUE VALUE HEATERS 178.29$        
SLAVENS TRUE VALUE LUMBER, PAINT 254.97$        
SOUTHWEST AGRICULTURE Parts/Labor- Repairs to Pinion Shaft/Differential   2,477.34$    

Total 14,964.12$  

Planning & Building NCSI APPLICANT PROFILES 55.50$          



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING NOVEMBER 11, 2022

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

Total 55.50$          

Shop ADVANCED PETROLEUM REPAIR, LLC Leak Detector Activation Test 3 GPH at 10 PSI 130.00$        
ADVANCED PETROLEUM REPAIR, LLC Tank Monitor Test 160.00$        
ADVANCED PETROLEUM REPAIR, LLC Service/Labor - Perform Testing and Paperwork 172.00$        
ADVANCED PETROLEUM REPAIR, LLC Hydrostatic Line Test Diesel Tanks 4&5 210.00$        
ADVANCED PETROLEUM REPAIR, LLC Hydrostatic Line Test Unleaded Tanks 1.2.3 315.00$        
FOUR STATES TIRE CO. Blanket PO - Tire Repairs and Alignments 20.00$          
FOUR STATES TIRE CO. Blanket PO - Tire Repairs and Alignments 20.00$          
FOUR STATES TIRE CO. Blanket PO - Tire Repairs and Alignments 20.00$          
FOUR STATES TIRE CO. Blanket PO - Tire Repairs and Alignments 20.00$          
FOUR STATES TIRE CO. Blanket PO - Tire Repairs and Alignments 50.00$          
FOUR STATES TIRE CO. Blanket PO - Tire Repairs and Alignments 89.99$          
FOUR STATES TIRE CO. Blanket PO - Tire Repairs and Alignments 89.99$          
CHOICE BUILDING SUPPLY 4595567 Duct tape 11.99$          
CHOICE BUILDING SUPPLY 10476 Cotton mophead 15.99$          
CHOICE BUILDING SUPPLY 10501 Mop handle 17.99$          
KEESEE MOTORS FUEL PUMP CONTROL MODULE 40.89$          
SOUTHWEST AGRICULTURE Parts/Labor- Repairs to Pinion Shaft/Differential   2,477.35$    
ADVANCED PETROLEUM REPAIR, LLC 1X1 Twister Swivel 1 inch 83.36$          
SENERGY PETROLEUM Dyed diesel for Parks 1,906.42$    
SENERGY PETROLEUM 86UL Unlead Gas for Service Center 5,168.84$    
SUPERIOR SERVICES, LLC Blanket PO - Janitorial Services at Service Center 1,950.00$    
CITY OF CORTEZ FIBER 256.00$        
AMERICAN FIRST AID & SAFETY Blanket PO - 1st Aid Kit Refills 34.56$          
AMERICAN FIRST AID & SAFETY Blanket PO - 1st Aid Supplies 38.90$          

Total 13,299.27$  

Technology AVAYA INC CALLING CREDITS PACKAGE 23.67$          
Total 23.67$          

Airport FIFTH ASSET, INC SUBSCRIPTION 5,875.00$    
Total 5,875.00$    

Dispatch LANGUAGE LINE SERVICE INTERPRETATION SERVICES 13.51$          
PARKER'S WORKPLACE SOLUTIONS NOTARY STAMP 19.84$          

Total 33.35$          

Rec Center ASCAP ANNUAL LICENSE FEE 411.72$        
NCSI APPLICANT PROFILES 37.00$          
CITY OF CORTEZ FIBER 599.64$        
WESTERN PAPER DISTRIBUTORS BASIC HRT (28.37)$         
WESTERN PAPER DISTRIBUTORS CLEANING SUPPLIES 114.91$        
NICE ELECTRIC MOUNT DISCONNECT SWITCH 1,135.07$    

Total 2,269.97$    



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING NOVEMBER 11, 2022

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

Water POSTAL PROS, INC. POSTAGE 649.17$        
SAN JUAN BASIN HEALTH DEPT. Blanket PO - Lab testing for Bac-T's 350.00$        
CITY OF CORTEZ FIBER 556.00$        
USA BLUEBOOK Blanket PO - Chemicals and Lab 552.19$        
GRAINGER 26WC55 1/2 inch Stainless Steel Flat Washers 25 2.88$            
GRAINGER 40TW73 1/2-13 18.8 Stainless Steel Hex Nuts 25/ 5.61$            
GRAINGER 24K919 1/2-13 x 3 18.8 Stainless Steel Bolts 5/pk 19.74$          
MANE SHIPPING LLC SHIPPING 157.88$        
MOUNTAINLAND SUPPLY COMPANY 6 150# Flange bolt pack" 66.40$          
MOUNTAINLAND SUPPLY COMPANY SHIPPING 229.04$        
MOUNTAINLAND SUPPLY COMPANY 14 150# RG Flange bolt pack" 348.29$        
MOUNTAINLAND SUPPLY COMPANY Romac Macro HP 6 2-bolt coupling - #260-07608 406.40$        
MOUNTAINLAND SUPPLY COMPANY Romac 400-14.00-1A-SCT-SS Coupling 897.74$        
MOUNTAINLAND SUPPLY COMPANY 2506-1 6 Flange NRS Gate valve w/handwheel" 995.87$        
MOUNTAINLAND SUPPLY COMPANY 14 x 15-1/2 Flange x Flange Spool Fitting" 1,431.41$    
MOUNTAINLAND SUPPLY COMPANY 14 CL 150 4500-02 Flange butterfly valve w/sq nu 6,527.50$    

Total 13,196.12$  

CCN Fund CCG CONSULTING Blanket PO - Consulting/Fiber CCN Network 153.40$        
UTILITY NOTIFICATION CENTER Blanket PO - Utility Notification Charges 127.40$        
CITY OF CORTEZ FIBER 1,337.40$    
MAMMOTH NETWORKS Blanket PO - D1A, CRTZ2018-001R 2Gbps commi 1,695.00$    

Total 3,313.20$    

Refuse POSTAL PROS, INC. POSTAGE 649.17$        
BIG R/JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL WORK CLOTHING 86.47$          
FOUR CORNERS WELDING & GAS SUPPBlanket PO - Welding supplies for Dumpster Repa 7.48$            
FOUR CORNERS WELDING & GAS SUPPBlanket PO - Welding supplies for Dumpster Repa 17.87$          
INTERMOUNTAIN FARMERS ASSOC. WORK CLOTHES 298.70$        

Total 1,059.69$    

Total 77,276.98$  



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING NOVEMBER 18, 2022

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

Library ATMOS ENERGY GAS SERVICE 470.33$        
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - Library 45.50$          

Total 515.83$        

City Hall Operations ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - City Hall Fire Alarm 25.00$          
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - City Hall 45.50$          
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS REPAIR ROOM 1002 PANIC BUTTON 117.95$        
EMPIRE ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION ELECTRIC SERVICE 1,284.86$    
AMERICAN FIRST AID & SAFETY FIRST AID SUPPLIES 66.94$          
VITAL RECORDS CONTROL DOCUMENT DESTRUCTION 57.35$          

Total 1,597.60$    

Welcome Center ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - Welcome Center 45.50$          
Total 45.50$          

Police Department VERIZON WIRELESS PHONE 40.01$          
VITAL RECORDS CONTROL DOCUMENT DESTRUCTION 117.56$        
AXON ENTERPRISE AXON VR System 7,378.38$    
AT&T MOBILITY PHONES 133.33$        
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform services 5.50$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform services 5.50$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform services 5.50$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform services 5.50$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform services 5.50$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform services 11.00$          
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform services 11.00$          
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform services 11.00$          
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform services 11.00$          
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform services 11.00$          
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform services 11.00$          
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform services 11.00$          
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform services 11.00$          
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform services 16.50$          
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform services 16.50$          
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform services 16.50$          
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform services 22.00$          
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform services 22.00$          
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform services 22.00$          
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform services 22.00$          
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform services 22.00$          
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform services 27.50$          
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform services 27.50$          
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform services 33.00$          
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform services 38.50$          



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING NOVEMBER 18, 2022

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform services 38.50$          
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform services 38.50$          
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform services 143.00$        
MONTEZUMA COUNTY SHERIFF Jail contract - Blanket PO 8,000.00$    
ORKIN LLC PEST CONTROL SERVICES 175.00$        
ATMOS ENERGY GAS SERVICE 64.81$          
STAPLES ADVANTAGE 572645 3-hole HD Punch, 30 sheet capacity 36.74$          
STAPLES ADVANTAGE HP26A CF226A Print cartridge, Black 101.98$        

Total 16,669.31$  

Animal Shelter ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - Animal Shelter 45.50$          
EMPIRE ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION ELECTRIC SERVICE 39.90$          
CORTEZ COPY & PRINT PET LICENSES 35.75$          
DRUG & ALCOHOL TESTING ASSOC EMPLOYEE DRUG TESTING 45.00$          

Total 166.15$        

Public Works ZORO TOOLS INC Dunlop Roll Down Hip Waders, Size 8 75.27$          
ZORO TOOLS INC Dunlop Roll Down Hip Waders, Size 7 225.81$        
ZORO TOOLS INC Dunlop Roll Down Hip Waders, Size 10 225.81$        
EMPIRE ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION ELECTRIC SERVICE 211.28$        
MCC DRUG & ALCOHOL SCREENING DRUG TESTING 62.00$          

Total 800.17$        

Golf Course Maint ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - Golf Course Maintenance Shop 35.50$          
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS ALARM SERVICES 45.50$          
LE PEW PORTA-JOHNS INC. Winterization Months 60.00$          
LE PEW PORTA-JOHNS INC. Fuel Surcharge - 20% 74.00$          
LE PEW PORTA-JOHNS INC. Portolet Rental #13 Tee Monthly 310.00$        
ATMOS ENERGY GAS SERVICE 53.63$          

Total 578.63$        

Parks ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - Park Shop 22.00$          
SLAVENS TRUE VALUE PAINT, PAINT ROLLERS 39.91$          
AMERICAN FIRST AID & SAFETY FIRST AID SUPPLIES 31.73$          
CHOICE BUILDING SUPPLY PUTTY, SCREWS 21.77$          
CRUZAN IRRIGATION COUPLING, PVC 100.23$        
SLAVENS TRUE VALUE ROPE 21.83$          
SLAVENS TRUE VALUE DECK SCREWS 29.98$          
SLAVENS TRUE VALUE ROOF EDGE STYLE 2X2 50.65$          
THE PLUMBING STORE COUPLINGS 10.50$          

Total 328.60$        

Recreation ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - Softball Complex 22.00$          
Total 22.00$          



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING NOVEMBER 18, 2022

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

Planning & Building SHORT-ELLIOTT-HENDRICKSON INC Blanket PO - Planning Services until End of the Ye 5,365.00$    
Total 5,365.00$    

Shop MCC DRUG & ALCOHOL SCREENING DRUG TESTING 62.00$          
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - IT/Server Room 45.50$          
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - IT/Server Room 45.50$          
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS REPAIR FRONT PANIC BUTTON 217.77$        
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS TEST PANIC BUTTONS 288.75$        
ATMOS ENERGY GAS SERVICE 283.36$        
ATMOS ENERGY GAS SERVICE 339.84$        
ATMOS ENERGY GAS SERVICE 703.49$        
VITAL RECORDS CONTROL DOCUMENT DESTRUCTION 57.35$          

Total 2,043.56$    

Technology CENTURYLINK TELEPHONE SERVICE 2.66$            
Total 2.66$            

Airport GARVER LLC ENGINEERING SERVICES 960.27$        
EMPIRE ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION ELECTRIC SERVICE 56.28$          
RENT ALL RENTALS SKID STEER RENTAL 178.00$        

Total 1,194.55$    

Rec Center ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - Rec Center Fire Alarm 22.00$          
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS ALARM SERVICES 45.50$          
DRUG & ALCOHOL TESTING ASSOC EMPLOYEE DRUG TESTING 90.00$          

Total 157.50$        

Water GREEN ANALYTICAL LABS, INC. Blanket PO - Lab Testing Services 135.00$        
MCC DRUG & ALCOHOL SCREENING DRUG TESTING 107.00$        
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - Water Plant 45.50$          
VERIZON WIRELESS PHONE 120.09$        
ATMOS ENERGY GAS SERVICE 965.73$        
THATCHER CHEMICAL CO. Blanket PO - Liquid Alum AL2 5,501.00$    
WRS Caterpillar 320EL Long Reach Excavator - 1 week      2,450.00$    
MCC DRUG & ALCOHOL SCREENING DRUG TESTING 62.00$          
VERIZON WIRELESS PHONE 40.03$          
ZORO TOOLS INC Dunlop Roll Down Hip Waders, Size 11 225.81$        
ZORO TOOLS INC Dunlop Roll Down Hip Waders, Size 12 225.81$        
INTERMOUNTAIN FARMERS ASSOC. HYDRANT REPAIR KIT 14.99$          

Total 9,892.96$    

Refuse MCC DRUG & ALCOHOL SCREENING DRUG TESTING 62.00$          
WASTEQUIP LLC 70000211 3YD Rear Load Dumpster, Squeeze, M  18,590.33$  



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING NOVEMBER 18, 2022

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

Total 18,652.33$  

Total 58,032.35$  



CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
November 22, 2022 Agenda Item: 2. c.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Honorable Mayor and City Council
 

FROM:
 

Donna Murphy, Deputy City Clerk

SUBJECT:
 

Approval of a renewal Fermented Malt Beverage Liquor License and Change of Manager
application for Walmart Store No. 0966, located at 1835 East Main Street, Cortez.
 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Renewal- Walmart



 

 

 

                                                                            

11/8/2022 

 

 

 

MEMO TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 

FROM:        Donna Murphy, Deputy City Clerk 

 

SUBJECT:  RENEWAL APPLICATION FOR A FERMENTED MALT BEVERAGE LIQUOR 

LICENSE AND A CHANGE OF MANAGER APPLICATION FROM WALMART 

INC., DBA WAL-MART STORE NO. 0966, LOCATED AT 1835 EAST MAIN 

STREET, CORTEZ 

 

 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

The renewal application referred to above was filed in the City Clerk’s office on October 21, 2022.  

The application appears to be complete and all fees were paid. 

 

ISSUES 

 

The fire inspection report shows no violation to the Fire Code. 

 

The police report shows no liquor violations were found over the past twelve months. 

 

The sales tax account is current. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

Staff recommends approval of the renewal Fermented Malt Beverage Liquor License and Change of 

Manager application for Walmart Inc., DBA Wal-Mart Store No. 0966, located at 1835 East Main 

Street, Cortez.   

 



CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
November 22, 2022 Agenda Item: 5. a.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Honorable Mayor and City Council
 

FROM:
 

Rachael Marchbanks, Director of Community/Economic Development

SUBJECT:
 

The Champion Xpress Car Wash has Requested to Withdraw their Application for a Conditional
Use Permit.
 

BA CK G RO U N DBA CK G RO U N D
Please see attached memo.

RECO MMEN D A TIO NRECO MMEN D A TIO N
Staff recommends that Council accept the withdrawal of the Champion Xpress Car Wash Conditional Use Permit
Application.

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Letter Regarding Champion Xpress Car Wash Withdrawal





CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
November 22, 2022 Agenda Item: 5. b.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Honorable Mayor and City Council
 

FROM:
 

Linda Smith, City Clerk

SUBJECT:
 

Ordinance No. 1303, Series 2022
 
 

BA CK G RO U N DBA CK G RO U N D
Please find attached staff memo regarding Ordinance No. 1303, Series 2022 and ordinance as presented on
second reading.

RECO MMEN D A TIO NRECO MMEN D A TIO N
Staff recommends that Council approving at public hearing and second reading, Ordinance No. 1303, Series
2022, amending the City of Cortez Land Use Code, Section 3.05 - Use Regulations Regarding Dwelling,
Accessory Unit - ADU.

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Memo on Ordinance No. 1303, Series 2022
Ordinance No. 1303, Series 2022
public comment received















CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
November 22, 2022 Agenda Item: 7. a.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Honorable Mayor and City Council
 

FROM:
 

Brian Peckins, Director of Public Works

SUBJECT:
 

Bid Results and Lease of Four Refuse Trucks
 

BA CK G RO U N DBA CK G RO U N D
Please see attached staff memo and bid results.

RECO MMEN D A TIO NRECO MMEN D A TIO N
Staff recommends that Council award the bid to McNeilus through Sourcewell at $280,682 each for three 25-yd
rear-loading units ($842,046) and one 30-yd side-load unit to Kois Brothers at $340,142.50.  Both companies
have met City specification requirements for quotes and have the available chassis and work bodies required to
meet our schedule.  The monies have been budgeted in the 2023 Refuse Enterprise Fund and placeholder Lease-
to-Own Agreements have been secured through Kansas State Bank.

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Memo Regarding the Purchase of 4 Refuse Trucks
Bid Results for Refuse Trucks



PW-2022-108 

 

     

Meeting Date:  November 22, 2022 

 

 

MEMO TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 

FROM: Brian K. Peckins, Director of Public Works 

 

SUBJECT: Bid Results and Lease of Four Refuse Trucks  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

SUBJECT DESCRIPTION 

 

Staff is presenting bid results and is requesting Council approval to lease new refuse trucks that 

better meet the needs of the department and will help us adhere to industry best practices. 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

The City’s Refuse and Recycling fleet has been saddled with excessively high maintenance costs, 

and high downtime brought on by poor reliability issues. Four trucks within our Refuse fleet have 

the Maxxforce engines; these engines have known reliability issues in the trucking industry. In 

addition, these 20-yd single-axle units are undersized in performance and legal carrying capacity 

in relation to the workload that we require of them.  This means that even after system upgrades 

have been added (such as drop-down axles), the current units have always been operated at 

maximum capacity, which further contributes to maintenance issues and downtime.  These issues 

have culminated to produce a highly stressful environment for Staff members due to lack of access 

to reliable and operational equipment on a daily basis.  This results in triaging equipment and 

making do on a daily basis, and crews are often required to use substandard or partially-operating 

equipment.  To aggravate the circumstance, on 11/15/2022, we experienced a serious engine 

problem with one of the units resulting in it being sidelined until diagnosis and repair can occur (if 

possible). 

 

ISSUES 

 

After analyzing costs and issues with the present Refuse fleet, Public Works Staff reached out for 

quotes from interested and prospective bidders for larger units with known reliable drivetrains that 

meet industry best practices.  Due to supply chain issues and the urgency to address ongoing fleet 

issues and a possible lapse in service, Staff researched upgrading the fleet through Sourcewell 

Cooperative Bid Agent that the City subscribes to, which satisfies the competitive bidding 

requirements that are employed by the City of Cortez.  Quotes and savings through Sourcewell are 

shown below: 

 

 

 

 

City of Cortez 

City Council 

Agenda Memorandum 



CITY COUNCIL  PW-2022-108 

Refuse Truck Quote Results 

November 22, 2022  Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Kois Brothers (Heil) - Denver, CO  McNeilus - Phoenix 

Truck Type 

Without 

Sourcewell 

With 

Sourcewell  

Without 

Sourcewell 

With 

Sourcewell 

25-yd rear-load  $297,342.25    $289,842.25        $286,384.00   $280,682.00  

30-yd side-load  $348,142.50    $340,142.50     Chassis not available in 2023  

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

Staff recommends awarding the bid to McNeilus through Sourcewell at $280,682 each for three 

25-yd rear-load units ($842,046) and one 30-yd side-load unit to Kois Brothers at $340,142.50. 

Both companies have met City specification requirements for quotes and have the available chassis 

and work bodies required to meet our schedule. The monies have been budgeted in the 2023 Refuse 

Enterprise Fund and placeholder Lease-to-Own Agreements have been secured through Kansas 

State Bank. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
j:\pwadmin\refuse\to council-purchase_trucks w-o motion.docx 























































CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
November 22, 2022 Agenda Item: 7. b.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Honorable Mayor and City Council
 

FROM:
 

Linda Smith, City Clerk

SUBJECT:
 

Possible Cancelation of Council Meeting Scheduled for Tuesday, December 27, 2022
 
 

BA CK G RO U N DBA CK G RO U N D
Traditionally, Council has canceled the second meeting in December due to the holidays.

RECO MMEN D A TIO NRECO MMEN D A TIO N
Council will consider approving the cancelation of the Council meeting scheduled for Tuesday, December 27,
2022, due to the holidays.


	Agenda
	2.a. Agenda Minutes 11.08.2022
	       ATT_Agenda Minutes November 8, 2022
	2.b. Expenditure List
	       ATT_Expenditure List
	111822 Expenditure List
	111122 Expenditure List.pdf
	111122 Expenditure List


	2.c. Renewal- Walmart
	       ATT_Renewal- Walmart
	5.a. Champion Xpress Car Wash
	       ATT_Letter Regarding Champion Xpress Car Wash Withdrawal
	5.b. Ordinance No. 1303, Series 2022
	       ATT_Memo on Ordinance No. 1303, Series 2022
	       ATT_Ordinance No. 1303, Series 2022
	       ATT_public comment received
	7.a. 4 refuse trucks
	       ATT_Memo Regarding the Purchase of 4 Refuse Trucks
	       ATT_Bid Results for Refuse Trucks
	7.b. Cancel December 27 meeting

